
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2021 - 7:00 PM
ORION COMMUNITY CENTER

1335 JOSLYN ROAD
LAKE ORION, MI 48360

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
3. APPROVAL OF BILLS
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
6. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, October 18, 2021
B. Accept Employee Resignation 
C. Budget Adjustments 
D. 3rd Quarter Treasurer Report 
E. Miles for Meagan - 7 Mile Run
F. Award Bid - Fire Department Turnout Gear
G. Tuition Reimbursement Request

7. PENDING
A. First Reading - PC-2021-79, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, 
Industrial Park (IP), Article 18, Section 18.01 - Land Uses 

8. REPORTS
A. Police/Fire Reports
B. CN in Your Community 2021 Report
C. Municipal Complex, October 2021 Executive Report

9. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
11. ADJOURNMENT

In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability should feel free to 
contact Penny S. Shults, Clerk, at (248) 391-0304, ext. 4001, at least seventy-two hours in advance of the meeting to 
request accommodations.

2

3
7
8
11
31
35
69

70

76
84
87

1



11/1/2021

INVOICES
Total Checks

Non Board Bills 10/27/2021 $24,184.94
Board Bills 11/1/2021 $2,203,295.22

Total Invoices $2,227,480.16

Void #133204 Reissued ($140.80)
Void #133453 Reissued ($2,169.20)
Void #133557 Reissued ($7,057.55)
Void #133820 Reissued ($2,742.10)

Total Invoice Disbursements $2,215,370.51

PAYROLL

Total Gross

Regular Pay 10/27/2021 $251,448.82

FICA Expenses $15,196.38
Benefit Expenses $60,221.99

Total Payroll Disbursements $326,867.19

Grand Total Disbursements $2,542,237.70

Due to the conversion to the Pooled Cash Fund, total disbursements include
refunds from deposits, bonds & escrows which are not expenses to the township. 
The payroll check register shows deductions that are not expenses to the township.

             Prepared by Melissa Bardecki

2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

1.  CALL TO ORDER.  The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a regular meeting on 
Monday, October 18, 2021 at Orion Center, 1335 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, MI  48360. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Brian Birney, Julia 
Dalrymple, Mike Flood and Kim Urbanowski 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT:
Dan Dewey Kati DeMattia Joe Salome
Patrick Ross Alysha Moorhead Alyssa Kipke
Josh Yates Merl Meacham Tammy O’Dea
Ziae Kassab Turi Fisher Tom Shugar
Kelsey Shugar Denise Burns Michele Smither
Rebecca Smither Jenny Brown Tom Fisher
Mary Ann Fischer Roland Fischer Nathan Fischer
Sveta Fischer Doug Brown Debbie Brown
Douglas Lovelace 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE. Pastor Josh Yates gave the invocation, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

3. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH. Supervisor Barnett honored Rebecca Smither as citizen of the month 
for her hard work and dedication to Orion Township as a smiling barista at Lava Mountain Coffee 
Company. 

4. PRESENTATION. Presentation was given by the Building Official, Dave Goodloe on the damage 
assessment in Orion Township after the storm on October 8, 2021.

5. APPROVAL OF BILLS. Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Flood to authorize 
payment of bills in the amount of $680,915.98 and payrolls in the amount of $333,619.27, for a total 
disbursement of funds in the amount of $1,014,535.25, as presented.   AYES: Dalrymple, Flood, 
Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney    ABSENT: None   NAYS: None    MOTION CARRIED

6.  PUBLIC COMMENT. (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment. Public 
comment was heard. 

7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to approve the agenda, as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED
          
8.  CONSENT AGENDA. 

A.  Minutes – Regular Meeting, October 4, 2021. Approve, as presented. 

3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

B.  Notice of Solicitation – Christ the Redeemer Community Outreach Project. Receive and file the 
notice of solicitation from Christ the Redeemer Community Outreach Project, with the Clerk to notify 
the OCSO of the request.

C.  Street Closure – Bald Mountain Road. Adopt the resolution allowing the temporary closure of 
Bald Mountain Rd from 5:00 p.m. – 7:30 p.m. on October 31, 2021, subject to compliance with all 
Township requirements, and direct the Clerk to forward a copy of the resolution to the Road 
Commission.  

D. Parks & Paths Bylaw Changes. Adopt the Parks & Paths Committee bylaws amendment, as 
presented.

E. Create Ord. 154 Subcommittee. Create an Ordinance 154 Subcommittee consisting of the 
Township personnel identified in this memo, and charge the subcommittee with review of the permit 
applications received for Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers and provide the Board of Trustees 
with their recommendation of the four establishments to receive the available permits.  

F. Purchases – ARPA. Authorize using American Rescue Plan funding for the proposed expenditures 
and authorize the Township Supervisor to execute all required purchase orders and agreements for the 
requested items. 

G. Purchase – ARPA – Aerial Service Truck. Authorize the purchase of the 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 
with 40’ Aerial Service Truck at a total cost not to exceed $125,679.

H. Purchase – Facilities & Grounds Truck with Utility Crane. Authorize the purchase (with trade in) 
of the new GMC Sierra 2500 pickup truck for the Facilities & Grounds department, at a total net cost not 
to exceed $58,000 as budgeted. 

I. Purchase – Facilities & Grounds Truck with Plow. Authorize the purchase (with trade in) of the 
new GMC Sierra 2500 pickup truck for the Facilities & Grounds department, at a total cost not to 
exceed $36,000 as budgeted.

J. Purchase – Parks & Recreation Pickup. Authorize the purchase (with trade in) of a new 2022 Ford 
Ranger pickup truck for the Parks & Recreation department, at a total net cost not to exceed $30,000 as 
budgeted. 

K. Hire Parks & Recreation Seasonal. Hire Nathan Fischer as a Parks & Recreation seasonal 
employee, contingent upon passing all required pre-employment paperwork. 

L. Hire Firefighter. Authorize the hiring of Matthew Schaefer as full-time Firefighter effective October 
25, 2021 pending results of physical, background check and drug screening.

M. Matured, Called and Purchases of Securities & Bonds for Water/Sewer and General Accounts. 
Receive and file. 

4



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

N. CDBG FY 2022 Public Hearing. Set the public hearing on the CDBG 2022 allocation for Monday, 
November 15, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.

O. Waive Permit Fees Associated with Storm Remediation. Approve the Building Official to waive 
permit fees for homeowners due to the storm on October 8, 2021.

P. Updated Township Engineering Standards. Adopt the updated Township Engineering Standards 
conditioned upon the successful 2nd reading of the Township initiated text amendment to Ordinance 139 
being held this evening. 

Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to approve the Consent Agenda, as 
presented.   AYES:  Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, Urbanowski
ABSENT:  None    NAYS: None      MOTION CARRIED

9.  PENDING BUSINESS.

A. First Reading – PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request. Moved by Clerk 
Shults, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and 
approved the first reading on October 18, 2021, for PC-2021-70, Grandview 3120 S. Lapeer Rd Rezone, 
a request to rezone approximately 17.44 acres of 3120 S. Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-26-151-019) from 
Recreation-2 (REC-2) to Multiple Family Residential 1 (RM-1) and approximately 4.21 acres from 
Recreation-2 (REC-2) to General Business (GB).   AYES: Shults, Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, 
Urbanowski, Barnett   ABSENT: None    NAYS: Steele      MOTION CARRIED

B. First Reading – PC-2021-71 F&D Silverbell Rezone Request. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded 
by Trustee Flood to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the first 
reading on October 18, 2021, for PC-2021-71, F&D Silverbell Rezone, a request to rezone approx. 
23.05 acres of vacant parcel (#09-35-100-019) located at the SW corner of Silverbell and Lapeer Road 
from Office Professional (OP) to Industrial Park (IP), and approx. 7.02 acres from Office Professional 
(OP) to General Business (BG).    AYES: Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults   
ABSENT: None   NAYS: None    MOTION CARRIED

C. Second Reading – Township Initiated Text Amendment to Ord. 139. Moved by Trustee Flood, 
seconded by Treasurer Steele to declare that the second reading of the Township initiated text 
amendment to the Stormwater Management & Soil erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance #139 to 
have been held on October 18, 2021 and to approve/adopt.     AYES: Birney, Dalrymple, Flood, 
Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele    ABSENT: None    NAYS: None   MOTION CARRIED

D. Schedule Budget Workshop. Moved by Trustee Flood, seconded by Treasurer Steele to schedule a 
budget workshop with the Board of Trustees for Monday, November 1, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. at the Orion 
Center. AYES: Dalrymple, Flood, Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney ABSENT: None 
NAYS: None    MOTION CARRIED

5



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2021

_____________________________________________________________________________

10.  REPORTS.

A.  Police/Fire Reports.  Moved by Trustee Birney, seconded by Trustee Flood, to receive and file the 
reports, as presented.  MOTION CARRIED

B. Community Survey. Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Birney, to receive and file. 
MOTION CARRIED

11.  PUBLIC COMMENT.  Public Comment was not heard.

12.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS.  Board member comments were heard.

13.  ADJOURNMENT.  Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Birney to adjourn.
MOTION CARRIED   The meeting was adjourned at 8:48 p.m.                                                                                                                                                                  

________________________________
      Penny S. Shults, Clerk

Transcription: J. London 

_____________________________
         Chris Barnett, Supervisor

              Charter Township of Orion

6



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor
Meeting Date: November 1, 2021

Memo Date: October 26, 2021
Subject: Accept Resignation for Timothy London, Building Inspector

REQUEST
Accept with regret resignation of full time Building Inspector, Timothy London, effective October 29, 2021.

REASON
I am requesting that we accept the resignation of Full Time Building Inspector, Timothy London, dated October 19, 2021 
and effective October 29, 2021, as he pursues an opportunity as a Building Official in a neighboring community.

PROCESS
Board approval of the resignation submitted by Timothy London..

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Accept the resignation of Building Inspector, Timothy London, with regret based on submitted letter dated October 19, 
2021 with an effective date of October 29, 2021.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

7



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Ashley Coyle, Budget & Procurement Director
Meeting Date: November 1, 2021

Memo Date: October 27, 2021
Subject: Budget Adjustment

REQUEST
It is requested that the Township Board approve the recommended Budget Adjustments as outlined in the Budget 
section of this memo.  Because the Township budgets at a “Department” level, budget adjustments are necessary to 
move monies from one department to another even though ‘new monies’ may not be requested.

REASON
Budget adjustments may be recommended for any of the following reasons:

 Transfer between funds.
 Transfer between capital and operating budgets.
 Transfer between capital projects.
 Acceptance and appropriation of grant funding.
 Amendment of staffing level.
 Appropriation from fund balance.
 Appropriation for modified revenue and related expenditures

BUDGET
CLERK – GENERAL FUND

The Clerk’s department has experienced major personnel changes in 2021 that will cause them to go over budget in 
2021.  There were numerous positions that changed levels during the Union Job Study which resulted in salary increases 
and the retirement of the previous controller resulted in vacation and paid time off payouts.  Additionally, there has 
been an increase in overtime as the Controller and Accounts Payable/Payroll Coordinator work to catch up on the 
workload from the few months Orion Township was left without a controller.  $10,000 is being requested from the 
General Fund Fund’s Balance to ensure that this department does not go over budget. 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
Requested 

Amount
101-215-713  – OVERTIME $10,000
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND FUND BALANCE $10,000

8



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

ASSESSING DEPARTMENT – GENERAL FUND

Assessing is predominately outsourced to Oakland County.  This year, $249,810 was budgeted to cover the Equalization 
Invoice from the county.  However, the invoice came in at $263,476.52.  A budget adjustment of $10,000 is being 
requested form the General Fund Fund’s Balance to cover the deficit.  The remaining difference can be absorbed by 
reducing expenditures in other accounts.

ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT – GENERAL FUND

Effective January 1, 2021, an Ordinance Enforcement department was established in the general fund since the code 
enforcement duties performed by these positions are General Fund activities and not the Building Department/Fund 
activities.  Because these expenses were broken out from the Building Fund, it was unknown what the true costs of 
running the Ordinance Enforcement department would be.  Now that the year is coming to an end, a budget adjustment 
is necessary.  $10,000 is being requested from the General Fund Fund’s Balance to ensure that this department does not 
go over budget.

ARPA/FEMA

Orion Township will be receiving approximately four million dollars in American Rescue Plan Act Funding.  Fund 285 has 
been created to track these expenses.  In order to expense items to this fund, a budget adjustment needs to be made 
recognizing the $1,916,847.50 (50% of the awarded amount).  This adjustment will take place in Fund 285 and Fund 592 
– Water & Sewer.  It is not anticipated that more than $750,000 will be spent of the ARPA funds this year. 

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
Requested 

Amount
101-257-806  – CONTRACTUAL HELP $10,000
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND FUND BALANCE $10,000

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
Requested 

Amount
101-400-956  – DUES & MISC $10,000
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND FUND BALANCE $10,000

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME
Requested 

Amount
285-000-528  – FEDERAL GRANTS GEN GOV $1,916,847.50
VARIOUS EXPENSE ACCOUNTS $750,000

9



V4.04-08-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

MARIHUANA REVENUE & HOST FEE REVENUE

The Marihuana Revenue and Host Fee Revenue have been earmarked to help pay the debt services payment for the 
Corridor Improvement Authority and the Municipal Complex and Sheriff Substation.  While we do our best to budget the 
true revenue estimates for these items, the true revenues of these items are not known until 12/31/2021.  It is my 
recommendation to allow the Budget Director or the Accounting Controller to move the actual revenues collected, not 
the estimates, to either the Corridor Improvement Authority or the Municipal Building Debt Funds.

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS & IN-TRUST ACCOUNTS

Special Assessment Districts and In-Trust Funds are used to finance major infrastructure upgrades or to manage existing 
assets.  While these funds do not belong to the Township, they are managed by the Township.  Based on the 2021 
budget, a few of these funds need budget adjustments to make the accounts whole.  These funds have their own 
individual fund balances and do not take contributions from the General Fund.   

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Direct the Accounting Controller or Budget & Procurement Director to make the Budget Adjustments based on the 
overbudget funds and accounts listed.

FUND 230 – ELKHORN LAKE

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME Amount
230-950-960  – WEED HARVESTING $14,362
TRANSFER FROM ELKHORN LAKE SAD FUND BALANCE $14,362

FUND 254 – BUNNY RUN LAKE

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME Amount
230-950-960  – WEED HARVESTING $100
TRANSFER FROM ELKHORN LAKE SAD FUND BALANCE $100

FUND 710 – INDIANWOOD LAKE IMPROV BOARD

ACCOUNT NUMBER/NAME Amount
710-000-403  – CURRENT TAXES $79,752
710-850-960 – WEED HARVESTING $100,000
TRANSFER FROM ELKHORN LAKE SAD FUND BALANCE $20,248

10



11



3rd Quarter 2021

Treasurer’s Report

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Penny Shults, Township Clerk
Meeting Date: November 1, 2021

Memo Date: October 26, 2021
Subject: Miles for Meagan - 7 Mile Run

REQUEST
Attached please find a request for Board approval for a seven-mile run - Miles for Meagan on December 4, 2021 at 10:00 
a.m. 

REASON
Jon Margerum-Leys wishes to host a 7-mile walk/run in memory of his daughter. The race will be limited to 100 
individuals. They do not plan to have any structures in the road that would not allow for quick passage of emergency 
vehicles. 

PROCESS
The request has been sent to the Fire Chief, DPW Director, and OCSO. The applicant has provided a map indicating the 
area affected, and has stated they will have volunteers to monitor street crossings. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board action would be to approve Miles for Meagan on December 4, 2021 at 10:00 a.m., subject to compliance with all 
Township requirements.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

31



32



33



34



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Robert Duke, EFO, Fire Chief 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2021 

Memo Date: October 27, 2021 

Subject: Award Bid - Fire Department Turnout Gear 
 

 

REQUEST 
The request is to award the bid for Fire Department Turnout Gear to Apollo Fire Equipment. 

REASON 
The current provider of turnout gear for the Fire Department is no longer able to honor the terms of their agreement. As 
such, a new Request for Bids was issued on September 24, 2021 in order to select a new vendor. Turnout gear is 
included in the Fire Department's capital budget over the next five years for staggered replacement. The first round of 
gear purchased under this agreement will be in January 2022.    

PROCESS 
A Request for Bids for the purchase of Firefighter turnout gear was issued on September 24, 2021.  Three bids were 
received by the submittal deadline of October 8, 2021.  The submittals were reviewed by Fire Administration. Please 
refer to the attached memo from Assistant Chief Pender detailing the reasons and process for selection, as well as the 
bid results. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
Award Firefighter turn out gear bid to Apollo Fire Equipment located at 12584 Lakeshore Drive Romeo, MI 48065.  
 

 

 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

35



      
  Orion Township Fire Department 

Interoffice Memorandum

Date:  October 14, 2021

To: Robert Duke, Fire Chief
         

From:
John Pender
Assistant Fire Chief  

Subject: Turnout Gear bid award_2022 Capital Plan   

The Fire Department received 3 qualified bids for turnout gear. This bid was requested to begin 
the process of replacing our turnout gear over the next 5 years. NFPA 1851 states that 
firefighting ensembles (turnout gear) SHALL be retired no more than 10 years from date of 
manufacture. 
Our current turnout gear was manufactured in 2015 and our backup gear was manufactured in 
2007. 
This bid was requested and budgeted over the next 5 years in our capitol plan to replace current 
gear and backup gear. The plan will allow us to purchase up to 10 sets of gear per year for the 
next 5 years. This will allow for all gear to be replaced prior to the 10-year expiration date.
A committee was formed with 5 members of the department and is chaired by Firefighter Jill 
Freeman. Firefighter Freeman is responsible for the department’s turnout gear. Firefighter 
Freeman has obtained certifications in regards to turnout gear for maintenance, cleaning, 
inspecting and storage.  

The committee would like to recommend that the RFB from Apollo Fire Equipment be 
selected.

Apollo’s bid was the lowest cost and meets all requested specifications. Apollo was also able to 
supply new hire gear in 45 days from date of PO issued. 

Apollo Fire Equipment- $2,736.73 per set
5- Alarm-                        $2,775.61 per set
R&R -                             $3,043.98 per set

Recommended bidder (Apollo) RFB is attached along with the bid tracking sheet showing all 
bidders and proposed pricing. 

If accepted, the fire department will be issuing a PO for gear order of 10 sets in January 2022 to 
coincide with the 2022 fire capital budget. Total cost $27,367.30

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor
Meeting Date: November 1, 2021

Memo Date: October 27, 2021
Subject: Tuition Reimbursement Request - Tandem Graves

REQUEST
Request from Tandem Graves, Accounting Controller, for reimbursement of ACC - 202 Managerial Accounting through 
Southern New Hampshire University.  Course begins 10/25/2021 and concludes on 12/19/2021.

REASON
This course will aid in properly accounting for Township assets, liabilities and equity by means of reconciliation of 
departmental programs and telling the financial story through reporting and interpretation of reports.

PROCESS
Per the Tuition Reimbursement Policy, approved reimbursement will be processed after the employee completed twelve 
(12) months of continuous employment with Orion Township, following successful completion of coursework. Estimated 
reimbursement should take place on or after 12/19/2022 and will be budgeted for in the 2022 budget year.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Authorize Tandem Graves to take the Acc - 202 Managerial Accounting course and approve reimbursement in an 
amount not to exceed $960.00, contingent upon all requirements as listed in the Tuition Reimbursement Policy.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

69



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2021 

Memo Date: October 25, 2021 

Subject: PC-2021-73, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Industrial 
Park (IP), Article 18, Section 18.01 - Land Uses 
 

 

REQUEST 
Board action on PC-2021-73 

REASON 
The Planning Commission, at their October 20, 2021 meeting, passed a motion to forward to the Board of Trustees, a 
recommendation to approve PC-2021-73, Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Industrial Park (IP), Article 18, 
Section 18.01.. 

PROCESS 
The Board of Trustees holds the first reading for PC-2021-73 on November 1, 2021 and directs the Clerk to advertise for 
the second reading and possible approval/adoption on December 6, 2021. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
November 1, 2021 
 
Move to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the first reading on November 1, 2021, 
for PC-2021-73, Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Article 18, Section 18.01, and to direct the Clerk to publish 
for the second reading and possible approval/adoption on December 6, 2021. 
 
December 6, 2021 
 
Move to declare that the second reading of PC-2021-73, Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Article 18, Section 
18.01, to have been held on December 6, 2021 and to approve/adopt. 
 

 

 

☐ Consent ☒ Pending 

70



Charter Township of Orion
Planning & Zoning Department
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
P: (248) 391-0304 ext. 5000; Fax (248) 391-1454

TO: Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees

FROM:            Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director

DATE: October 27, 2021

RE: PC-2021-73, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, 
Industrial Park (IP), Article 18, Section 18.01 – Land Uses

____________________________________________________________________________

The proposed text amendment is to change the allowed uses in the Industrial Park District (IP) to 
allow retail as provided for in the Township’s Licensed Marihuana Facilities Ordinance (Ordinance 
154).  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on 10/20/21 as well as deliberation at the 
same meeting.  The following motion was passed by the Planning Commission: 

Moved by Vice-Chairman Gross, seconded by Commissioner Gingell, that the Planning 
Commission forwards a recommendation to the Township Board to approve and adopt 
PC-2021-73, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance No. 78, Industrial 
Park (IP), Article XVII as submitted:  since this is consistent with Ordinance #154.

Roll call vote was as follows:  Gross, yes; Urbanowski, yes; Brackon, yes; Gingell, yes; 
St. Henry; Walker, yes; Reynolds, yes. Motion carried 7-0. 

  
Attached please find:  The red-line proposed text, the Public Hearing Minutes and Regular 
Planning Commission minutes from 10/20/2021.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with any 
questions at x 5000.

71



72



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING, OCTOBER 20, 2021 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

9 
 

Chairman Reynolds asked the intent is not a berm or knee wall waiver in the design 
standards but rather to be provided?  Vice-Chairman Gross replied to be provided. 

 
Roll call vote was as follows:  St. Henry, yes; Gingell, yes; Brackon, yes; Urbanowski, yes; 
Walker, yes; Gross, yes; Reynolds, yes. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Moved by Vice-Chairman Gross, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski, that the Planning 
Commission grant site plan approval for PC-2021-67, J.S. Brown Rd., LLC site plan, located at 
851 & 861 Brown Rd., (parcels 09-33-351-020 & 09-33-351-021) for plans date stamped and 
received September 27, 2021.  This approval is based on the following conditions:  that the 
applicant complies with the OHM conditions on their letter of October 12, 2021, items 1 – 3. 
 
Discussion on the motion: 
 

Chairman Reynolds asked that the motion maker would clarify for the record that the 
additional spaces to the west as indicated on the civil plans are to be removed not 
banked. 

 
Vice-Chairman Gross amended the motion, Trustee Urbanowski re-supported, that the said 
parking on the west side to the north would be considered as removed and not banked. 
 
Roll call vote was as follows:  Urbanowski, yes; Brackon, yes; St. Henry, yes; Gingell, yes; 
Walker, yes; Gross, yes; Reynolds, yes. Motion carried 7-0.  
 
B. PC-2021-73, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Industrial Park 
(IP), Article 18, Section 18.01 – Land Uses 
 
Chairman Reynolds said that there was a general overview provided during the public hearing.  
Is there further discussion, questions, comments on the agenda item? 
 
Moved by Vice-Chairman Gross, seconded by Commissioner Gingell, that the Planning 
Commission forwards a recommendation to the Township Board to approve and adopt PC-
2021-73, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance No. 78, Industrial Park (IP), 
Article XVII as submitted:  since this is consistent with Ordinance #154. 
 
Roll call vote was as follows:  Gross, yes; Urbanowski, yes; Brackon, yes; Gingell, yes; St. 
Henry; Walker, yes; Reynolds, yes. Motion carried 7-0.  
 
C.  PC-2021-07, 5-Year Master Plan Update 
 
Chairman Reynolds said that they had a Workshop earlier today talking about Future Land Uses 
and a variety of opportunities within the Township.  He asked if Planner Arroyo had anything 
else he would like to add?   
 
Planner Arroyo replied that they had a good discussion just keep those things in mind and he 
thought that they would continue that.  They will have more material at the next study session in 
a month.  He thought that they did a good job covering a lot of information and probably 
wouldn’t be that great to continue in detail at this point in the evening. 
 
Chairman Reynolds said they always encourage public input and obviously those are open 
meetings on their second meeting of every month to discuss the Master Plan update and keep 
that moving along for the Township.  He added that one item that might be helpful is if they 
could circle back to some of that data with dwelling units/acre based on some of those types 

73



 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
PC-2021-73

TOWNSHIP INITIATED TEXT AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORDINANCE #78 INDUSTRIAL PARK 
(IP), ARTICLE 18, SECTION 18.01 – LAND USES

PUBLIC HEARING – WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021

The Charter Township of Orion Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on Wednesday, October 20, 
2021, at 8:44 pm at the Orion Township Community Center, 1335 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, MI  48360.

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:
Don Walker, PC Rep to ZBA    Scott Reynolds, Chairman  
Don Gross, Vice-Chairman    Derek Brackon, Commissioner  
Joe St. Henry, Secretary        Kim Urbanowski, BOT Rep to PC
Jessica Gingell, Commissioner
               
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:
None

CONSULTANTS PRESENT:
Rod Arroyo, (Township Planner) of Giffels Webster
Matt Wojciechowski, (Township Planner) of Giffels Webster
Mark Landis (Township Engineer) of OHM Advisors
Tammy Girling, Township Planning & Zoning Director

OTHERS PRESENT:
Sharon McQueen Alicia Lawson Jim Lepar
Matt Lawson Gordon Cox Susan Carpenter
Tracy Deuman Ken Mihelich Dale Carpenter
Kelley Mihelich Lorita Woznick Jeff Wright
Terry Clissold Susan Johnston Matt Rippin
Desirae Langlois Melissa Slowik Mary Ann Ryan
Richard Stein Linda Stein Wendy Ryan-Doreza
Kim Hunter Lynn Kuczajda Craig Junkin
Chris Krystek Robert Glownia Anne Earle
Steve Eynon Barbara VanRaaphorst Michael Lo
Bev Rolfsen Mary Mansfield Dale Anderson
Robert Bambuel William McNabb Andrea Holt
Pam McNabb John Slocombe Linda Savard
Bill Schmitz Jeff Klatt Diane DoByckere
David Gammon Amy Keyzer Kellie McDonald
John Falvo Sue Falvo Mike Rizzola (sp?)
Marcie Ramsey Bob Ramsey

PC-2021-73, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Industrial Park (IP), Article 18, 
Section 18.01 – Land Uses.

Chairman Reynolds stated that this public hearing is for an initiated text amendment to amend their 
Industrial Park (IP) zoning ordinance for updated ordinance #154, that allows Provisioning Centers.  The 
language under uses not permitted is essentially being corrected to include components that would be 
allowed and authorized under Ord. 154., which would be licensed marijuana facilities including retail 
components under that ordinance.

Chairman Reynolds said similar function to what they had previously that is their overview since it is a 
Township initiated text amendment, there is not a petitioner here tonight.  He asked if there were any 
citizen comments or questions on the Township Initiated Text Amendment?  There were not.74



PC-2021-73, TWP INITIATED TEXT AMENDMENT TO ZONING ORD. 78, (IP), WEDNESDAY, 10-20-2021 PUBLIC HEARING

2

Chairman Reynolds said that they have not received any citizen’s letters.  He asked if there were any 
comments from the Planning Commissioners?  There was not.

Chairman Reynolds closed the public hearing at 8:46 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Debra Walton
PC/ZBA Recording Secretary ______________________________
Charter Township of Orion Planning Commission Approval Date

75



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period:  10-11-2021 to 10-17-2021

21-212462           3:55PM              10/12/2021            Larceny from Vehicle - Report

Deputies received a walk-in complaint at the Orion Twp Substation for a Larceny report.  A 16-
year-old resident stated that he was notified by his brother that his wallet had been stolen from 
his vehicle on 10/6/2021.  On 10/08/2021 the front office at the Lake Orion High School 
returned the victim’s wallet to him.  Per the victim the only thing that was missing out of his 
wallet was cash.  Suspect unknown. All information was collected and turned over to 
detectives, investigation continues. 

21-213068           10:43AM     10/13/2021 Assist Fire Department Narcan (Naloxone) 
Administered

Deputies and the Orion Township Fire Department were dispatched to the 900 block of 
Mcclellan for an unconscious subject with agonal breathing. 

Upon arrival the subject a 29-year-old resident or Orion Township was discovered not breathing 
with no pulse. Deputies performed live saving measures (CPR) until the subject regained a 

Calls for service: 368
Felony arrests:    2
Misdemeanor arrests:   5
Accidents:    16

76



pulse. Seconds later the subject lost a pulse again and Deputies suspected a possible overdose. 
Deputies administered one dose of Narcan (Naloxone) and the subject regained consciousness.

The Orion Township Fire Department transported the subject to McLaren Hospital for 
additional treatment.

21-213618           12:14AM           10/14/2021          CCW / Possession of an Unregistered Gun, 
DWLS 2nd / Arrest

Deputies were on patrol in the area of Lapeer and Brown Rd when they affected a traffic stop 
for a basic violation. The driver, a 29-year-old Detroit resident was not able to provide 
necessary paperwork to deputies.  Deputies confirmed that the driver was suspended and had 
several outstanding warrants; the driver was placed under arrest for DWLS.  A subsequent 
search of the vehicle was conducted, and a loaded unregistered handgun was located and 
confiscated.  The driver was safely transported to Oakland County Jail without incident pending 
prosecutor’s review. 

UPDATE: The subject was arraigned on the charges of Carrying a Concealed Weapon in an 
Automobile (Felony), Driving While License Suspended 2nd Offense (Misdemeanor), and No 
Vehicle Insurance (Misdemeanor). She was given a personal bond on all charges and released 
from the Oakland County Jail.

21-214065         3:16PM           10/14/2021             Larceny of Property Report

Deputies were dispatched to the 500 block of Brown Rd for a larceny report.  A 36-year-old 
Clarkston resident stated that an employee, a 31-year-old Lapeer resident had quit his job and 
contacted him to return multiple chainsaws. Both parties agreed to meet to collect the 
property.  When the complainant arrived around 9:00AM he was unable to locate the 
chainsaws. All information was collected and turned over to detectives.  Investigation 
continues.

21-214482       2:05     AM      10/15/2021                 Domestic Assault Arrest

Deputies were dispatched to 2755 S. Lapeer Rd. (Red Roof Inn) for an assault and battery 
complaint. A 43-year-old employee reported that she was slapped in the face by a female 
guest. Responding deputies located and identified the female suspect in a parked vehicle. The 
suspect was identified as a 37-year-old Rochester Hills woman. An investigation revealed that 
the suspect was staying at the inn with her boyfriend. Deputies interviewed the boyfriend who 
reported she assaulted him several times and was “off her meds” so he locked her out. When 
staff refused to let the suspect into the room, she then attacked the staff. Deputies 
photographed the victim’s injuries. Based on the physical evidence and witness statements the 
suspect was placed under arrest for domestic assault and safely lodged at the Oakland County 
Jail. 

77



UPDATE: The subject was arraigned on the charge of Domestic Violence (Misdemeanor) and 
given a $2500 C/S bond.

21-215091       9:58     PM      10/15/2021                 Single Vehicle Crash/ OWI Arrest

Deputies were dispatched to the intersection of Giddings Road and Waldon Road for a vehicle 
that crashed into a pole. Deputies identified the driver as a 46-year-old Lake Orion woman. 
Deputies suspected the driver was intoxicated and during questioning she admitted that she 
was impaired.  Subsequently the driver was unable to complete sobriety tests as instructed.  
The suspect submitted to a PBT, registering nearly three times over the legal limit. The driver 
was placed under arrest for OWI, and Deputies obtained a warrant for a blood draw. The driver 
was safely lodged at the Oakland County Jail pending blood analysis.

21-215715             8:15PM             10/16/2021           Operating Under the Influence -Arrest

Deputies received a BOL for a vehicle traveling southbound on Lapeer Rd near Waldon Rd 
which was swerving between lanes of traffic. Deputies observed the suspect vehicle and 
conducted a traffic stop.  When Deputies contacted the driver, a 35-year-old female resident of 
Waterford, it was determined the driver was under the influence of alcohol.  Deputies 
requested a PBT with a result registering nearly three times over the legal limit.  The female 
was subsequently taken to a local hospital for a blood draw and then safely transported to the 
Oakland County Jail where she will be released in the morning.  Criminal charges will be 
pending lab results.

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

78



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period:  10-18-2021 to 10-24-2021

21-217492               6:42AM           10/19/2021             Domestic Assault 
Deputies were dispatched to Canary Hill Drive for a report of a Domestic Assault.  Deputies 
arrived and made the scene safe.  The victim a 22-year-old resident, stated that her boyfriend a 
21-year-old Pontiac resident started yelling at her because she returned home late.  The victim 
stated that she went to her room and laid down.  A short time later she heard a loud noise and 
woke up with her boyfriend standing next to her; he then punched her in the face. Deputies 
interviewed both parties and based upon the victim’s statements and the physical evidence, 
the suspect was placed under arrest for domestic assault. The suspect was safely transported 
and lodged at the Oakland County Jail pending prosecutor review.

UPDATE:  The Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office authorized a complaint for Domestic 
Violence. The warrant was sworn to in front of Magistrate Holt from the 52 3rd D.C. The subject 
was arraigned and given a $2,000.00 personal bond.

21-217731          12:49PM           10/19/2021      Retail Fraud - Report 
Deputies responded to 3073 Brown Rd (Menards) for a retail fraud complaint.  An employee 
stated that on 10/18/2021 a female subject entered the store and proceeded to the health and 

Calls for service: 392
Felony arrests:    1
Misdemeanor arrests:   4
Accidents:    25

79



beauty section. The suspect selected several items taking them out of the packages and 
concealing the items on her person; then proceeding towards the exit passing all points of 
purchase making no attempt to pay for the items.  Suspect(s) unknown.  All information has 
been gathered and turned over to detectives, investigation continues.

21-218184              10/19/2021          11:14PM    Resisting and Obstructing a Police Officer

A deputy initiated a traffic stop in the area of Brown Rd and Purks Rd for a moving violation. 
The deputy approached the driver’s side of the vehicle and asked the driver for his Michigan 
Operator’s License. The driver, while facetiming a female subject, refused to produce his license 
and ignored the deputy’s directives. The female in the facetime conversation advised the driver 
that he did not have to cooperate or comply with the police. Back-up units arrived on the 
scene. The driver continued to be uncooperative and was advised that he was under arrest. The 
driver refused to exit his vehicle and actively resisted arrest by pressing his feet down on the 
floorboards, pressing his body into the seat and pulling away from deputies. The driver was 
safely secured without further incident. The driver was then lodged at the Oakland County Jail 
with no incident pending the issuance of charges.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: During the driver’s arrest, the female subject from the facetime 
conversation arrived on the scene in her vehicle. She parked beside the patrol cars and began 
to approach deputies with a cellular device in her hand. Deputies gave loud, clear verbal 
commands not to interfere. She was uncooperative, continued to advance on the deputies 
aggressively and refused their directives. The subject was advised that she was under arrest. 
She actively resisted deputies by pulling away from them. The driver was safely secured without 
further incident. The arrestee was lodged at the Oakland County Jail pending the issuance of 
charges.

ARRESTEE INFORMATION: 31-year-old male, resident of the City of Pontiac

ARRESTEE INFORMATION: 30-year-old female, resident of the City of Pontiac

UPDATE: This case was presented as an in-custody arrest warrant request to the Oakland 
County Prosecutor’s Office authorized the charge of Resist and Obstruct a Police Officer on both 
subjects. 

The Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office authorized the charges:

Resist and Obstruct a Police Officer (2-year felony) and No Operator’s License (90-day 
misdemeanor) on the male subject.

Disturbing the Peace (90-day misdemeanor) on the female subject.

80



The warrant was sworn to in front of Magistrate Soma from the 52 3rd D.C. The male was 
arraigned and given a $5000 Personal Bond. The female was arraigned and given a $500 
Personal Bond.

21-220579 6:35 PM 10/22/2021 Retail Fraud 2nd 

Deputies were dispatched to ACE Hardware (3015 S Baldwin Rd) for a Retail Fraud where a 
female fled the store with $211.98 worth of merchandise.  When Deputies arrived, they 
searched the area for the suspect with negative results.  The store manager stated the female 
entered the store, selected two items off the shelf and immediately walked out of the store.  
The suspect possibly fled the area in a gold Chevrolet Trailblazer.  The investigation is ongoing.

21-220784 11:21 PM 10/22/2021 Operating Under the Influence 

Deputies were dispatched to Canterbury Village (2369 Joslyn Ct) for a couple having a verbal 
argument.  Upon arrival, deputies ascertained that the couple was under the influence of 
alcohol, which both parties admitted to drinking at the venue.  The Deputies advised the couple 
they were to leave their vehicle in the lot and get a ride home.  Deputies later observed the 
couple leave the parking lot in their vehicle.  Deputies conducted a traffic stop where they 
administered field sobriety tests.  The operator of the vehicle failed the tests and was given a 
PBT which yielded a result of .175.  The driver, a 40-year-old male from Warren, was placed 
under arrest and taken to a local hospital for a blood draw.  The driver was later safely taken to 
the Oakland County Jail and released in the morning.  This case is pending lab results. 

21-220817 12:10 AM 10/23/2021 Operating Under the Influence 

Deputies were doing routine patrol near Canterbury Village (2369 Joslyn Ct) where they 
observed a pickup truck drive from the parking lot, through the grass, then onto Joslyn Road.  
Deputies conducted a traffic stop and during their interactions believed the operator of the 
vehicle to be under the influence.  Deputies administered field sobriety tests to which the 
operator of the vehicle failed and was attempted to be given a PBT but was refused.  The driver, 
a 43-year-old female from Wixom, was placed under arrest and taken to a local hospital for a 
blood draw.  The subject was later safely taken to the Oakland County Jail and released in the 
morning.  This case is pending lab results. 

81



21-221025 9:44 AM 10/23/2021 Accidental Discharge of Firearm

Deputies were dispatched to the 4000 block of Bandury Road for a 57-year-old male who 
accidentally shot himself while clearing his 9mm handgun.  The male sustained a non-life-
threatening bullet wound to his left palm.  There were no signs of foul play.  Deputies located 
the spent bullet, and the male was transported to a local hospital for treatment.  

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

82



      
  Orion Township Fire Department 

Interoffice Memorandum

Date:  October 27, 2021

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees 
         

From:
John Pender
Assistant Fire Chief  

Subject: Fire Department Call Volume/Significant Incidents  

Orion Township Call Volume
October 13, 2021-October 27, 2021

Medical Calls- 83                                    Mutual Aid’s-
Non- Medical Calls- 50                              Received- 0
Total Call Volume- 133                                   Given- 2
Year to Date- 2838
Transports (pre-ALS)- 299
Transports YTD- (ALS)- 783
Transport Cost Recovery YTD- $334,246.07

Fire Department Significant Incidents
 Car fire in parking lot of Home Depot
 Reported structure fire- Found to be an electrical fire in the home 

furnace.
 Reported structure fire- Found to be a fire in the home’s clothes dryer. 

Fire was extinguished by first arriving crew. Dryer was removed from 
the home and house was ventilated. 

 Assisted Independence on a residential structure fire- Orion FD was 
called for a Tanker assist to Independence for a house on fire. Crew 
responded in the Tanker along with the shift Captain. Orion crew 
assisted with extinguishment and overhaul. No injuries reported.   

83



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Report Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Penny Shults, Township Clerk
Meeting Date: November 1, 2021

Memo Date: October 26, 2021
Subject: CN in Your Community 2021 Report 

REQUEST
In the report you will find information describing the ongoing investments in the diversity, strength and safety of 
communities all along the 19,500-mile tri-coastal network. It describes the various national, regional and local initiatives 
and partnerships, and contains practical information on how they can collaborate with you and live up to the 
commitment of being a good neighbor to the communities along the network. The report booklet is located in the 
Clerk's office.  

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Board Action would be to receive and file the CN in your community 2021 report, as presented. 

84



85



86



    
 

V4.04-08-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Report Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: November 1, 2021 

Memo Date: October 28, 2021 

Subject: Municipal Complex, October 2021 Executive Report 

 

REQUEST 
Please find attached the October 2021 Municipal Complex Executive Report prepared by Cunningham-Limp. 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
Receive and file the October 2021 Municipal Complex Executive Report. 
 

 

 

87



PREPARED BY

Orion Township 
Municipal Complex
EXECUTIVE REPORT #15

October 2021

88



Table of Contents.

 About Cunningham-Limp

 Executive Summary

 Design Summary

 Inspection Summary

 Construction Highlights

 Budget Report

 Schedule 

 Site Photographs

 Overall Site Plan

 Safety Cross

 Project Directory

2

89



At Cunningham-Limp, our mission is to make 
a positive impact on people, communities, 

and companies.

3

90



Project Mission

MISSION

To replace a functionally obsolete facility with

failing infrastructure and occupancy constraints,

with a community focused Municipal Complex

and Future Park that will serve generations of

residents in Orion Township.

4

91



Executive Summary.

The interior of the Sheriff’s Station is complete, except for a few more recently added items. The 

final coat of paint is going on and the furniture / IT team is wrapping up a few things. 

Inside Township Hall, the final framing details in the board room are being installed with drywall 

next. The fixed seating is scheduled to be installed in mid-November and complete by 

Thanksgiving. The department areas are almost complete. The team is currently installing 

decorative lighting, applying finish coats of paint, and installing the interior glass. The flooring has 

started with the polished, sealed concrete, and millwork will be next to install.  

On the exterior, the team made the decision to engage another concrete subcontractor to help 

with the remaining site concrete. Due to the weather, the original concrete subcontractor was 

struggling to mobilize. This strategic move has helped us complete the exterior concrete, now the 

landscape is in process, with the asphalt paving contractor getting ready to complete the rest of 

the paving.

. 

ORION TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COMPLEX SUMMARY

5

92



The design is complete and permitted for construction. The 

Municipal property sits on 77 acres, with the project utilizing 

14 acres. Excess land, consisting of natural woodland areas 

and wetland areas, will be preserved as designed. 

The Township Hall will be 43,637 square feet. The structure 

is a single–story building, with a full walkout basement. 

The Sheriff’s Substation will be 8,820 square feet and will sit 

adjacent to Township Hall. 

ORION TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COMPLEX SUMMARY

Design Summary. 6

93



Inspection Summary.
ORION TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COMPLEX SUMMARY

 The Township regularly performs inspections ongoing throughout the 

process.

 Independent testing agency is performing all required special inspections 

and materials testing. 

7

CONSTRUCTION ISSUES 

 The team is working through the following coordination items:

 Additional Low voltage / data cabling / security coordination.

 October of 2021 has also exceeded the average rain fall for this area by several days. 

Including a State of Emergency for Orion Township. 

 Material delays and manpower issues.

 Current Issues is the metal roof material delay.

 Material is onsite; however, manpower is still an issue. CL has supplemented the 

roofing contractor with additional manpower. CL’s replacement subcontractor is 

schedule to step in early November to complete the project. 

 Concrete was supplemented for both site concrete and exterior sign bases. 

94



Construction Highlights.
ORION TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COMPLEX SUMMARY

 The Sheriff Station is being final cleaned inside, and the landscaping around this building is near 

complete. 

 The metal roofing is onsite and approximately half installed. This has been a critical item that has been 

delayed due to supply chain issues and continues to have manpower issues.

 Township Hall is enclosed, and near weather tight.

 The interior partitions for the Township Hall areas have been painted in the department areas, and are 

ready for ceiling pads, final coat of paint, flooring and millwork.

 The board room framing is complete, and the final pieces of drywall are being installed. 

 The fixed seating is schedule for mid November to be installed.

 Final finishes have begun being installed. 

8

95



ORION TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COMPLEX APPROVED 

CONTRACT

Budget.

Approved Construction Contract: 

 Original Contract Value: $16,854,000

 2 Change(s) Orders to Date: $0

 Current Contract Value: $16,854,000

 % completed to date 93%

Contingency Status:

 Original Contingency Value: $500,000

 Current Contingency Value: $207,081

9

96



Schedule.

 An above-average rainfall for October, along with the torrential rainfall causing a State of Emergency in 

Orion Township have been proven to be difficult, however work continues to push forward.

 Supply chain issues have been a unique reality this year. The team has worked together to substitute 

equal materials to maintain the current schedule on more than one occasion.

 One specific challenge that the project has struggled with is the procurement of the metal roofing. 

This didn’t arrive on site until October due to several reasons (raw material, backlog, etc.,) 

manpower continues to be an issue.

 With the metal roof delay, the team is working though a completion schedule.

 Currently, the project team, including Orion Township, has agreed that due to the additional scope 

items and above-average rainfall, that the project schedule will be extended to the end of November 

2021. 

SCHEDULE ISSUES 

10

97



Project Schedule 11

98



Aerial Photographs.

October 13, 2021  

October 13, 2021  

12

99



Site Photographs. 13

Sherriff Station Sherriff Station 

100



Site Photographs. 14

Sherriff Station Sherriff Station 

101



Site Photographs. 15

Township Hall Township Hall 

102



Site Photographs. 16

Township Hall Township Hall 

103



Site Photographs. 17

Township Hall Township Hall 

104



Site Plan. 18

105



Safety Cross. 19

Safety Cross.pdf

106



PROJECT DIRECTORY.

COMPANY NAME TITLE ADDRESS MOBILE OFFICE EMAIL

Cunningham-Limp Sam Ashley Vice President 28970 Cabot Drive 

Suit 100 Novi MI

NA 248-489-2300 sashley@clc.build

Cunningham-Limp Jacob Gardner Project Manager 28970 Cabot Drive 

Suit 100 Novi MI

734-395-0639 248-893-2308 jgardner@clc.build

Cunningham-Limp Josh Muxlow Superintendent 28970 Cabot Drive 

Suit 100 Novi MI

248-763-1643 NA jmuxlow@clc.build

Cunningham-Limp Natalie Lawrence Project Coordinator 28970 Cabot Drive 

Suit 100 Novi MI

NA 248-488-7752 nlawrence@clc.build

Cunningham-Limp Matt Sportel Director of 

Construction

28970 Cabot Drive 

Suit 100 Novi MI

NA 248-893-2313 msportel@clc.build

Cunningham-Limp Directory

20

107



PROJECT DIRECTORY.

COMPANY NAME TITLE ADDRESS OFFICE EMAIL

Orion Township Chris  Barnett Township Supervisor 2525 Joslyn Road, Lake 

Orion, MI 48360

248-391-0304

EXT 1001

cbarnett@oriontownship.org

Orion Township Jeff Stout Director of Public 

Services

2525 Joslyn Road, Lake 

Orion, MI 48360

248-391-6842 jstout@oriontownship.org

Auger Klein Aller 

Architects Inc.

Scott Reynolds AIA Project Architect / AKA 

Associate

303 E. Third Street Ste 100 

Rochester

MI 48307

248-814-9160 s.reynolds@aka-architects.net

OHM Advisors James Stevens Principal 34000 Plymouth Rd 

Livonia, MI 48150

248-751-3100 James.stevens@ohm-

advisors.com

Orion Township Directory

21

108



CONTACT 
US. Headquarters

28970 Cabot Drive | Suite 100

Novi, Michigan 48377

Northern Michigan

818 Red Drive | Suite 30

Traverse City, Michigan 49684

MAILING ADDRESS

CONTACT@clc.build

EMAIL ADDRESS

248.489.2300

PHONE NUMBER

22

109


	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
	3. APPROVAL OF BILLS
	Board Bill Cover Sheet

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
	5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	6. CONSENT AGENDA
	6.A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, October 18, 2021
	Minutes, BOT oct 18, 2021

	6.B. Accept Employee Resignation
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - T London Resignation

	6.C. Budget Adjustments
	102721 BUDGET AMENDMENT FINAL

	6.D. 3rd Quarter Treasurer Report
	DOC102821-10282021113656
	Treas Report Logo Cover
	DOC102821-10282021113720

	6.E. Miles for Meagan - 7 Mile Run
	110121 Agenda Item Miles for Meagan run
	miles for meagan application

	6.F. Award Bid - Fire Department Turnout Gear
	11-1-2021_Agenda Memo - Award Bid - Fire Department Turnout Gear
	Turnout gear bid recommondation_2022
	turnout gear rfb-2022

	6.G. Tuition Reimbursement Request
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - Tuition Reimbursement T Graves2


	7. PENDING
	7.A. First Reading - PC-2021-79, Township Initiated Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance #78, Industrial Park (IP), Article 18, Section 18.01 - Land Uses
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - PC-2021-73 Text Amendment
	TB Cover Memo- PC-2021-73 Text Amendment Article XVIII
	File_  PC-2021-73, Twp. Text Amendment Article XVIII (IP) Red Lined
	Planning Commission Minutes
	10202021 PC Public Hearing Minutes PC-2021-73, Twp. Initiated Text Amend. (IP) - Land Uses


	8. REPORTS
	8.A. Police/Fire Reports
	ORION WEEKLY- 10-11-2021 to 10-17-2021 reported
	ORION WEEKLY- 10-18-2021 to 10-24-2021 release
	Board Incident Release 10-27-2021

	8.B. CN in Your Community 2021 Report
	110121 Report Item CN community report
	cn in your community

	8.C. Municipal Complex, October 2021 Executive Report
	11-1-2021_Agenda Memo - Municipal Complex, October 2021 Executive Report
	orion_township_municipal_complex_monthly_report__10.28.21


	9. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
	10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
	11. ADJOURNMENT

